
Village Life from the Eighteenth Century to the Present 

Employment in the Wool Trade 

! ƭƛǎǘ ƻŦ ΨŀōƭŜ-ōƻŘƛŜŘ ƳŜƴΩ ǿƘƻ ǿŜǊŜ ƭƛŀōƭŜ ǘƻ ǎŜǊǾŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ bƻǊǘƘŀƳǇǘƻƴǎƘƛǊŜ aƛƭƛǘƛŀΣ ǿŀǎ 

compiled in 1777. There were 36 names, which may not seem many, but there were several 

exemptions which reduced the numbers. What makes the list very informative is that the 

occupation of the men is given. They are as follows: 

Servant 10 
Farmer 6 
Weaver 6 
Comber 4 
Labourer 2 
Baker 2 
Shoemaker 2 
Blacksmith 1 
Miller 1 
Tailor 1 
Shepherd 1 
 
¢ƘŜ ƻŎŎǳǇŀǘƛƻƴǎ ΨǿŜŀǾŜǊΩ ŀƴŘ ΨŎƻƳōŜǊΩ ƳŀƪŜ ǳǇ мл ƻǳǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ осΦ !ǘ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƛƳŜ ŀ ŎƭƻǘƘ 
market was held in Harborough and these men would have been working on the wool and 
cloth at home, with the products going to the market. Women were probably involved as 
well, as spinners. John Nichols, in his History of Leicestershire, published in the late 18th 
century, reported, "In the present day, a considerable manufactory of tammies, shalloons, plain 
and figured lastings, &c. employs a great number of poor families in this town and neighbourhood. 
Several hundred pieces of tammies, shalloons, &c. and a large quantity of yarns and jerseys are 
brought weekly to the market.έ 

 
¢ŀƳƳƛŜǎΣ ǎƘŀƭƭƻƻƴǎ ŀƴŘ ƭŀǎǘƛƴƎǎ ǿŜǊŜ ǘȅǇŜǎ ƻŦ ǿƻǊǎǘŜŘΦ bƛŎƘƻƭǎΩǎ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘ Ƴŀȅ ōŜ ƻǳt of 

date, because it was reported of Kibworth in 1795, "There was formerly a tammy 

manufacture, which is now nearly laid aside".  

What happened to employment in the village when the local cloth industry declined? It 

seems that for a time the population declined as well, presumably because some people 

ƳƻǾŜŘ ǘƻ ŦƛƴŘ ǿƻǊƪΦ ¢ƘŜ ƴǳƳōŜǊǎ ǊŜŎŜƛǾƛƴƎ ƘŜƭǇ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ ǾƛƭƭŀƎŜΩǎ hǾŜǊǎŜŜǊǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ tƻƻǊ 

were considerable. The proportion of village men working in agriculture increased over the 

next few decades, as few alternatives existed locally. Censuses begin in 1801; in that year 

the population was 279 but by the next census in 1811 it had fallen to 251. 

 

New Jobs for Old 

The population remained at a similar level over the next few decades, including in the 

census of 1841. This was the first one which listed everyone and recorded occupations. Of 

all those who have an occupation, 50% are either agricultural labourers or graziers (the 

ŜƳǇƭƻȅŜǊǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƭŀōƻǳǊŜǊǎύΦ ¢ƘŜ ǿƻǊŘ ΨŦŀǊƳŜǊΩ ƛǎ ƴƻǘ ǳǎŜŘΣ ǎƘƻǿƛƴƎ ǘƘŀǘ ǾƛǊǘǳŀƭƭȅ ǘƘŜ ǿƘƻƭŜ 



parish was given over to pasture. Of the 74 people with occupations, 12 were servants at 

the larger houses. Other occupations were shoemaker, baker, grocer, tailor and publican; 

showing that villagers could buy essentials without leaving the village. 

The population figures in 1851 and 1861 were 238 and 242. The proportion in agriculture 

remained around 50%. New occupations in 1861 were butcher, groom, coachsmith and 

three bricklayers. 

Census totals in 1871 and 1881 were 222 and 223 respectively. In 1881 new occupations 

were two painters and two builders, as well as three laundresses - they most likely worked 

at the laundry in the outbuildings of the house now called Bleasdale.  

1891 saw a short-term rise in the population to 244. This census records a brewer (James 

Dulley of Harborough brewers Eady & Dulley, who lived in the Hall), as well as a printer and 

a staymaker (corset maker). These three would have commuted into Harborough to work, 

with the staymaker employed at R. & W.H. Symington. This marks the beginning of a 

growing trend for villagers to work away from the village, usually in Harborough. The advent 

of bicycles made this much more feasible. 

 

This is an advertisement for the Liberty Bodice, made in Market Harborough by R. & W.H. Symington. The model is Freda Cox, daughter of 

F.G. Cox, chairman and managing director of the company, who lived in East Farndon 

1901 marked the biggest change so far in the census information. The population declined 

to 204 (100 years earlier it had been 279). Perhaps work in the town encouraged people to 

move there. There are several new occupations: shop worker, factory worker, bank 

accountant, railway carter ς a world we can recognise as more like our own. The proportion 

in agriculture has declined from 50% to 31.5%. 

The last census currently available is 1911. It shows that the same trend continued. The 

population was down to 193. There are now 52 different occupations listed, in contrast to 

1841, when there were only 18. There are four cycle and motor workers and an electrical 

engineer. Also recorded are two company directors (the Coxes of R. & W.H. Symington) and 

a company secretary (G.W. Wilson of the same company, who lodged with the Coxes at the 

recently built Orchards). By now the proportion working in agriculture was down to 22.5%, 

less than half of the figure of 1841 but still a considerable number. 

 

Thatch gives way to Tiles and Slates 



Over the 20th century there was a considerable change in the appearance of the village. In 
medieval times the majority of houses would have been thatched, with cob or mud walls. 
Only a very small number would have been stone. Presumably the Manor House (now The 
Hall) would have been the first stone house. Then in the seventeenth century two 
ǎǳōǎǘŀƴǘƛŀƭ ƘƻǳǎŜǎ ǿŜǊŜ ōǳƛƭǘΣ ǘƘƻǎŜ ƪƴƻǿƴ ǘƻŘŀȅ ŀǎ Ψ¢ƘŜ aŀƴƻǊΩ ŀƴŘ ΨIƻƳŜ CŀǊƳΩΦ 
Gradually as the use of brick increased in the eighteenth century, more houses of some 
status were built. This must reflect increasing prosperity among some sections of the 
population. Some of these larger houses were still being roofed with thatch. 

  

 

  

A fire at one of the village's thatched cottages in the 1920s. All thatched houses have since been demolished or re-roofed in other 
materials. The Bell Inn, on the right, was one of two pubs, both of which have since been closed and turned into private houses. 

  

Many of the humbler cottages survived through to the twentieth century and there are 
photographs which show them. They look quaint but of course lacked what came to be 
considered essential facilities. So by the middle of the century they had all been demolished. 
The larger houses which had been thatched were re-roofed in tiles or slate. So today East 
Farndon has no thatched houses and is largely a brick-built village. 

  



 

This pair of thatched cottages, one with its entrance at the rear, were on Main Street. They were demolished in 1950. 

  

 

This pair of thatched cottages, one with its entrance at the rear, were at the southern junction of Main Street and Back Lane. They were 
demolished in 1950. 

One reason for the replacement of thatch with tiles or slates was the risk of fire. There have 
been three examples fires of occurring in the thatched roofs of village houses. One is shown 
here in the cottages that were near the Bell Inn. Another was at the Bakehouse (now The 
Old Bakehouse) in 1906 and the third at Orchard Cottage in 1947. 



 

The Bakehouse after the fire in 1906. It is surprising that the house was rebuilt and still stands today. 

 

Local Administration in the 19th century and beyond 

In the early 19th century village affairs were in the hands of the Vestry, a group which was 

made up of those who paid rates. Only property owners or tenants would pay the rates and 

the amount they paid depended on the value of their property. There was a rate to raise 

money to support the poor and another to keep the roads in a reasonable state. There 

might be further demands if the church needed repairs. The Vestry was normally chaired by 

the Rector or a Curate, so church and the village administration were all one. 

From amongst their number the Vestry chose two men (they were always men in those 

times) to be Overseers of the Poor, who would be responsible for keeping accounts of the 

ƳƻƴŜȅ ǘƘŜȅ ƎŀǾŜ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ǇƻƻǊ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǾƛƭƭŀƎŜ ŀƴŘ ŦƻǊ ƻǊƎŀƴƛǎƛƴƎ ǿƻǊƪ Ψƻƴ ǘƘŜ ǊƻǳƴŘΩ όƎƻƛƴƎ ŦƻǊ 

a time to work for different farmers) for those who had no work otherwise. They made 

payments to those in need or ill. There was no country-wide system of Social Security. It was 

all in the hands of the parish Overseers. 

The Vestry also chose two Overseers (or Surveyors) of the Highway to organise the purchase 

or excavation of material (gravel, stone) for the road and to employ and pay men for the 

work. 

There was also a Constable to keep an eye open for possible law-breaking, especially 

important before the County Police Force was formed around the middle of the century. 

The Account Books of the Overseers from the early part of the 19th century have survived (in 

Northamptonshire Record Office) and provide a fascinating insight into village life of the 

time. 



There was no County Council and the only authority above the parish Vestry was the 

Quarter Sessions, held at Kettering. The Overseers had to take their accounts there for 

approval at the end of each year. tǳōƭƛŎŀƴǎΩ ƭƛŎŜƴŎŜǎ ǿŜǊŜ ƎǊŀƴǘŜŘ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ vǳŀǊǘŜǊ {ŜǎǎƛƻƴǎΦ 

County Councils came into existence in 1889. In 1894 parishes were asked to choose 

between having a Parish Council or a Parish Meeting, which would have more limited 

powers and generally just have one meeting a year. East Farndon opted for the Parish 

Meeting and the first meeting was in March 1895. The change to a Parish Council was made 

in 1977. The separation of the church and the civil administration was an important part of 

the 1894 establishment of Parish Councils and meetings. Church administration was 

eventually taken over by the Parochial Church Council in 1920. 

Major Denis Cowen was a dominant figure in Farndon after World War 2. He was Chairman 

of the Village Meeting from 1950 to 1974 and Chairman of the Charity Trustees from 1951 

to 1985. He died in 1986. His photograph appears below. The first Chair of the newly-

ŦƻǊƳŜŘ tŀǊƛǎƘ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭ ƛƴ мфтт ǿŀǎ ΨWƻŜΩ ²Ŝǎǘ όŀƭǎƻ ōŜƭƻǿύΦ 

 

Denis Cowen 

 

ΨWƻŜΩ ²Ŝǎǘ 



The school was established as a church school around 1840, run by the Vestry with the 

Rector as one of a board of six. In 1902 control passed to the Local Authority, with a board 

of 4. The school closed in 1966. The photograph below shows the last group of pupils at the 

school when it closed. 

 

 

Social Life up to World War I 

From at least the 18th century till the second half of the 20th there were two pubs in the 

village, the Bell and the Three Horseshoes. In the days when the village was quite self-

contained and there were no other places of entertainment, they played a vital role in the 

communitȅΦ CƻǊ ƛƴǎǘŀƴŎŜΣ ƛƴ муулΣ ά¢ƘŜ IŜŀŘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ aŀǊƪŜǘ IŀǊōƻǊƻǳƎƘ ±ƻƭǳƴǘŜŜǊǎ ǿŀǎ 

engaged by Mr G. Russell, of the Three Horseshoes Inn, for both evenings and played for 

ŘŀƴŎƛƴƎέΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ ǿŀǎ ǘƘŜ ΨŦŜŀǎǘΩΣ ǘƘŜ ǇǊŜŘŜŎŜǎǎƻǊ ƻŦ ǘƻŘŀȅΩǎ ŦŜǘŜΣ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǘƻƻƪ ǇƭŀŎŜ ƻƴ ǘǿƻ 

weekday evenings. 

Sometimes one of the better-off residents would provide a meal for villagers on a special 

occasion, such as the one given by Mr Richard West in August 1874 when his daughter 

Frances was married. Similarly in June 1888 Mr Underwood of Little Oxendon marked a 

ŦŀƳƛƭȅ ǿŜŘŘƛƴƎ ōȅ ƎƛǾƛƴƎ ŀ ŘƛƴƴŜǊ ŦƻǊ мтл ǇŜƻǇƭŜΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ ǿŀǎ ǎŜǊǾŜŘ ōȅ aǊ wǳǎǎŜƭƭ άƛƴ ŀ ǎƘŜŘ ƛƴ 

ǘƘŜ ǎŎƘƻƻƭ ȅŀǊŘέ ¢ƘŜǊŜ ǿŀǎ ŘŀƴŎƛƴƎ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ [ǳōŜƴƘŀƳ .Ǌŀǎǎ .ŀƴŘΦ 

The Rector arranged an annual treat for the village children, when there would be tea and 

games on the Rectory lawns. There would also be occasional evening entertainments in the 

schoolroom, with songs from village residents. 

When James Nance was Rector (1895-1905), he formed an extraordinarily successful Church 

of England Temperance Society (CETS) branch in the village. He arranged meetings which 

included various entertainments, thereby persuading unlikely numbers of village people to 

pledge ǘƻ ŀōǎǘŀƛƴ ŦǊƻƳ ŘǊƛƴƪΦ ¢ƘŜ ŎƘƛƭŘǊŜƴΩǎ .ŀƴŘ ƻŦ IƻǇŜ ƘŀŘ нт ƳŜƳōŜǊǎ ƧƻƛƴƛƴƎ ŀǘ ŀ 

meeting in Januarȅ муфсΦ Lƴ муфт ǘƘŜǊŜ ǿŜǊŜ ŎŜƭŜōǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ŦƻǊ vǳŜŜƴ ±ƛŎǘƻǊƛŀΩǎ 5ƛŀƳƻƴŘ 

Jubilee, with a dinner for 130 adults, then games for the children and a supper for all 

including children. Every child received a jubilee mug or cup and saucer. 



At a CETS meeting in Apriƭ муффΣ άaǊ /ƻȄ ǇǊƻŘǳŎŜŘ ŀ ƎǊŀƳƻǇƘƻƴŜΣ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǿŀǎ ŀ ǎǳǊǇǊƛǎŜ ŀƴŘ 

ƎŀǾŜ ǇƭŜŀǎǳǊŜ ǘƻ ŀƭƭέΦ ¢ƘŜǊŜ ǿŀǎ ƴƻ ǾƛƭƭŀƎŜ Ƙŀƭƭ ƛƴ ǘƘƻǎŜ ǘƛƳŜǎΣ ǎƻ ƛƴŘƻƻǊ ŜǾŜƴǘǎ ǿŜǊŜ ǳǎǳŀƭƭȅ 

held in the schoolroom and outdoor events in the Rectory grounds. 

In July 1902 the coronation of Edward VII was celebrated, with a dinner for 150 people in a 

tent in the school yard, plus sports events and a supper. This is the earliest social event of 

which a photograph exists (below). 

 

On Boxing Day in 1903 a Social Evening was held in the schoolroƻƳ ŀƴŘ άǘŜŀ ŀƴŘ ŎƻŦŦŜŜ ŀƴŘ 

ǾŀǊƛƻǳǎ ƎƻƻŘ ǘƘƛƴƎǎΣ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ǘƻōŀŎŎƻΣ ǿŜǊŜ ƘŀƴŘŜŘ ǊƻǳƴŘΦέ Iƻǿ ǘƛƳŜǎ ƘŀǾŜ ŎƘŀƴƎŜŘΦ 

The school treat provided by the Rector, /ȅǊƛƭ .ǳǊƎŜǎΣ ƛƴ WŀƴǳŀǊȅ мфлф ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ǘŜŀ ŀƴŘ άŀ 

ƘƛƎƘƭȅ ŀƳǳǎƛƴƎ ŎƛƴŜƳŀǘƻƎǊŀǇƘ ŜƴǘŜǊǘŀƛƴƳŜƴǘΦέ 9ǾŜǊȅƻƴŜ over 16 had a dinner in the 

schoolroom in June 1911 to mark the coronation of George V. There were concerts in the 

schoolroom in 1913 and 1914, when village people performed, including the Misses Belton 

on the piano. 

 

Social Life from 1914 

In December 1914 ǘƘŜǊŜ ǿŀǎ ŀ ΨǇŀǘǊƛƻǘƛŎ ŜƴǘŜǊǘŀƛƴƳŜƴǘΩ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ άǎǇŜŎƛŀƭ ƴŜǿ ŎƻƭƻǳǊŜŘ 

ƭŀƴǘŜǊƴ ǎƭƛŘŜǎέΦ !ƳƻƴƎ ǘƘƻǎŜ ŀǘǘŜƴŘƛƴƎ ǿŜǊŜ ŀ ƴǳƳōŜǊ ƻŦ .ŜƭƎƛŀƴ ǊŜŦǳƎŜŜǎ ǿƘƻ ƘŀŘ ōŜŜƴ 

accommodated in the village. There were several fund-raising events during the war for the 

troops, ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ΨtŀǊƛǎƘ CŜŀǎǘΩ ƛƴ WǳƴŜ мфмс, when heavy rain brought proceedings to an 

early finish. 

A cricket club was started in 1920, with matches against neighbouring villages. There were 

events to raise funds for the War Memorial, such as a fancy dress dance at East Farndon 

Hall, thanks to the residents there at that time, Mr & Mrs Hart. The Feast continued each 



year and in 1922 Miss Paterson arranged a cricket match between the village team and a 

team of ladies. The Feast was still held on a Monday evening. 

Social events were given a boost in 1924 when the village hall, a wooden structure, was 

opened with a whist drive and dance. The building was in continuous use until it was 

replaced with the present brick hall in 1994. 

In the 1920s Market Harborough Polo Club had its ground in East Farndon, by the Marston 

Road, roughly opposite The Grange. This photo was taken on a match day at the ground. 

 

There were distinguished visitors to the polo ground; Major Wernher of Thorpe Lubenham, 

his wife Lady Zia, her father Grand Duke Michael of Russia and ex-King George of Greece 

(later to be re-instated as King). The Club closed down in 1928. 

Whist drives and dances were a staple entertainment in the 20s, usually to raise funds for a 

ƎƻƻŘ ŎŀǳǎŜΦ ! Ψ²ƻƳŜƴΩǎ {ŜǿƛƴƎ tŀǊǘȅΩ ƳŜǘ ǊŜƎǳƭŀǊƭȅ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǿƛƴǘŜǊ ƳƻƴǘƘǎ ŀƴŘ 

arranged trips out during the summer. The local paper featured this advertisement for the 

Feast in 1927, by when it had apparently changed to Sunday evening. 



 

An Entertainment Committee was very active in the 1930s. An event in February 1930 

featured conjuring tricks by Miss Bluett. From that year plays began to be performed, 

including ά¢ƘŜ WŀŎƻōƛǘŜέ, as shown in the photo below. 

 

Lƴ CŜōǊǳŀǊȅ мфом ŀƴ ŜǾŜƴƛƴƎΩǎ ŜƴǘŜǊǘŀƛƴƳŜƴǘ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜd άaǊ WΦ /ƭƛŦŦƻǊŘ ŀƴŘ Ƙƛǎ ǘǊoupe of 

ǇƛŜǊǊƻǘǎΦέ ό.Ŝƭƻǿύ 



 

¢ƘŜ CŀǊƴŘƻƴ ōǊŀƴŎƘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ²ƻƳŜƴΩǎ LƴǎǘƛǘǳǘŜ ǿŀǎ ŦƻǊƳŜŘ ƛƴ мфооΦ Lƴ ǘƘŜ ǎŀƳŜ ȅŜŀǊ ǘƘŜ  

CŜǘŜ ǿŀǎ ƘŜƭŘ ǘƘƛǎ ǘƛƳŜ ƻƴ ŀ ¢ƘǳǊǎŘŀȅ ŜǾŜƴƛƴƎΦ ¢ƘŜ ōƻȅǎ ŀƴŘ ƎƛǊƭǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƘƛƭŘǊŜƴΩǎ IƻƳŜ ƛƴ 

ǘƘŜ ǾƛƭƭŀƎŜ όƴƻǿ Ψ¢ƘŜ [ƛƳŜǎΩύ ōŜƴŜŦƛǘŜŘ ŦǊƻƳ parties arranged by ladies of the village. Jumble 

ƻǊ ΨwǳƳƳŀƎŜΩ ǎŀƭŜǎ ǿŜǊŜ ŀƭǎƻ ƘŜƭŘ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ŦƛǊǎǘ ǘƛƳŜ ƛƴ ǘƘƛǎ ŘŜŎŀŘŜΦ 

 There were celebrations for the Silver Jubilee of George V and the Coronation of George VI 

in 1935 and 1937 respectively. 

The programme for the 1935 celebration (below) shows how much preparation had gone 

into the occasion. F.G. Cox (and his family) feature prominently. The Cox family lived at The 

Orchards (now Orchard House); he was the chairman and managing director of R. & W.H. 

Symington, the corset manufacturers in Harborough. 



 

The events planned to mark coronation of George VI suffered from bad weather and had to 

be cut short. In November the copper beech tree which still stands on the triangular green 

near the church was planted to commemorate the coronation. 

During the Second World War events were inevitably fewer, but many were held, usually to 

raise money to assist the war effort in some way. Some years the fete did not take place but 

had restarted by 1945, after VE daȅΦ Ψ²Ƙƛǎǘ ŘǊƛǾŜ ŀƴŘ ŘŀƴŎŜΩ ǿŀǎ ǎǘƛƭƭ ǘƘŜ Ƴƻǎǘ ŦǊŜǉǳŜƴǘ 

entertainment. Sometimes the music was played by a German band from the Prisoner of 

²ŀǊ ŎŀƳǇ ƛƴ IŀǊōƻǊƻǳƎƘΣ ǊƻǳƎƘƭȅ ǿƘŜǊŜ wƻȅ IǳōōŀǊŘΩǎ ƎŀǊŀƎŜ ƛǎ ǘƻŘŀȅΦ 

In the autumn of 1948 a village football team was formed, sustaining a series of heavy 

defeats at first. A 1950s team is shown in this photograph. 



 

May Day was celebrated from 1949 and the next few years with the choosing of a girl to be 

the May Queen, who would lead other children round the village. The photograph shows 

the time Cynthia Whiterow was Queen. 

 

The village cricket team started up again in 1948. It seems these post-war years were the 

only ones when Farndon could boast a cricket and a football team. Whist drives continued 

and the W.I. held regular meetings. 

Lƴ WŀƴǳŀǊȅ мфро ǘƘŜ ƭƻŎŀƭ ǇŀǇŜǊ ǊŜǇƻǊǘŜŘΣ ǎƻƳŜǿƘŀǘ ƛƭƭƻƎƛŎŀƭƭȅΣ ǘƘŀǘ άŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ŦƛǊǎǘ ǘƛƳŜ ƛƴ 

ǘƘŜƛǊ ƘƛǎǘƻǊȅΣ ǘƘŜ {ƛŎƪ ŀƴŘ 5ƛǾƛŘƛƴƎ /ƭǳō ƘŀǾŜ ƘŜƭŘ ŀƴ ŀƴƴǳŀƭ ŘƛƴƴŜǊέΦ Yƴƻǿƴ ŀǎ ΨǘƘŜ {ƛŎƪ ŀƴŘ 

5ƛǾΩ ǘƘŜ Ŏƭǳō ƳŜǘ ŜǾŜǊȅ ŦƻǊǘƴƛƎƘǘ ŀƴŘ ƳŜƳōŜǊǎ ǇŀƛŘ ŀround a shilling each time. If anyone 

was ill they could draw money out. If any money was left at the end of the year it would be 



divided between the members. The club went back to a time before the First World War; 

one member, A.G. Reeves, had been in the club since 1911. 

June 1953 brought Queeƴ 9ƭƛȊŀōŜǘƘΩǎ ŎƻǊƻƴŀǘƛƻƴΦ ¢ƘŜ ǾƛƭƭŀƎŜΣ ƭƛƪŜ ǘƘŜ ǿƘƻƭŜ ŎƻǳƴǘǊȅΣ 

celebrated and the programme of events is shown below. 

 

 

{ƛƴŎŜ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƛƳŜΣ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ vǳŜŜƴΩǎ ǊŜƛƎƴΣ ǘƘŜ ǾƛƭƭŀƎŜ Ƙŀǎ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜŘ ǘƻ ƘƻƭŘ ǘƘŜ ŀƴƴǳŀƭ ŦŜǘŜΣ 

W.I. meetings, occasional talks, jumble sales and latterly an annual barbecue and regular 

coffee mornings. There was a cricket team for a short time in the 1980s but otherwise no 

sports teams. 

In the years round 1980 there was a revival of revues and other entertainments when 

villagers performed. The most ambitious, perhaps, was a performance of the musical 

άDǊŜŀǎŜέΦ {ƻƳŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜǎŜ ŜǾŜƴǘǎ ŀǊŜ ǎƘƻǿƴ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǇƘƻǘƻǎ ōŜƭƻǿΦ 



 

 

 



There was a branch of Age Concern in the village for over 25 years. There were regular 

meetings to provide a social environment for older residents who might spend much of their 

time alone. The photo below shows the volunteers who ran the branch. 

 

The Bell Inn (the interior is shown below) and the Three Horseshoes had contributed to 

social life but by the 1970s they had both shut, as in so many villages, in a trend that 

continues today. 

 

The photo shows George Dimbleby, the publican, and his wife Annie. George was the 

landlord from 1953 to 1966. 

Some more recent speciaƭ ƻŎŎŀǎƛƻƴǎ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜΥ ǘƘŜ vǳŜŜƴΩǎ {ƛƭǾŜǊ WǳōƛƭŜŜ ƛƴ мфттΣ ǿƘŜƴ ǘƘŜǊŜ 

was a tea-party for the children in the village hall (below) - 



 

¢ƘŜ vǳŜŜƴΩǎ 5ƛŀƳƻƴŘ WǳōƛƭŜŜ ƛƴ нл12: 

 

And the centenary of the 1918 armistice, with a ceremony at the War Memorial and a 

display in the village hall about those who served in the war: 


